

**BRECON NEPALESE SOCIETY  
UNITED KINGDOM  
CONSITUTION 2011**

**(AMENDED IN 2016)**

# Introduction

Nepal is a country of multi-faith, multi-culture and multi-languages. Because of these fundamentals, each and every caste and tribes have their unique customs and traditions.

Gurkhas began to serve under the Crown since 1815 and have served in numerous countries and places over the period, both in peace and war. One such place is Brecon where the Gurkhas have been serving since 1970.

With the changes to terms and conditions of service on 25 October 2004; and as a result of the Judicial Review, all serving and retired Gurkhas were given the right equal to general citizens of United Kingdom. Subsequently, many retired Gurkhas and their families began to arrive in Brecon and the surrounding area; and chose to settle down. Thus it was deemed necessary to form a community.

Its main purpose of forming the society is to preserve and further develop the unique nature of Nepalese culture and tradition as well as helping each other in integrating within the local community. It shall be free of any political and religious ideologies as far as possible.

**Clarification:** *Brecon Nepalese Society means those Nepalese citizens and their dependents who have come from Nepal and residing in Brecon and the surrounding areas, be it be permanent or non-permanent.*

## Part - 1

### Brief Name, Introduction and Definition

#### Article 1-0 Brief Name and Introduction

- 1-1-a. The name of the organization will be known as "**Brecon Nepalese Society UK**" and its abbreviation will be B.N.S. UK.
- 1-1-b. This act of constitution shall come in to effect after the date of approval by the community assembly or convention.

#### Article 2-0 **Definition:** Unless otherwise stated, in this act:

- 2-1. "**Law**" means prevalent law of **Brecon Nepalese Society**.
- 2-2. "**Act**" means this '**Act**' of the organization.
- 2-3. "**Article**" means article of this act.
- 2-4. "**Organization**" means **Brecon Nepalese Society** in Brecon, UK.

- 2-5. **"Executive Committee"** means the executive committee of the organization
- 2-6. **"Committee"** means different committees within the organization.
- 2-7. **"Chairman"** means the chairman of the organization.
- 2-8. **"Vice-Chairman/Deputy Chairman"** means **'Deputy Chairman'** of the organization.
- 2-9. **"Secretary"** means secretary of the organization.
- 2-10. **"Assistant Secretary"** means the assistant secretary of the organization.
- 2-11. **"Treasurer"** means treasurer of the organization.
- 2-12. **"Assistant Treasurer"** means the assistant treasurer of the organization.
- 2-13. **"Office Bearers"** means the office bearers of the organization from chairman to committee members including the advisors.
- 2-14. **"Secretariat"** means the secretariat of the organization.
- 2-15. **"Executive Member"** means member of the executive committee of the organization.
- 2-16. **"Convention"** means regular convention of the organization.
- 2-17. **"Assembly"** means assembly of the organization.
- 2-18. **"Special Convention"** means convention other than regular convention of the organization.
- 2-19. **"Department"** means department of the organization.
- 2-20. **"Assembly Member"** means a member of the assembly.
- 2-21. **"General Member"** means any member of the organization.
- 2-22. **"Family"** means husband and wife plus their unmarried children. Any young adults who are married shall have to have discrete membership.
- 2-23. **"Logo"** means the logo of the organization as mentioned in appendix -1 of this act.
- 2-24. **"Flag"** means flag of the organization as mentioned in appendix-2 of this act.
- 2-25. **"Stamp"** means stamp of the organization as mentioned in appendix-3 of this act.
- 2-26. The words written/expressed in **'Singular form'** also stand for **'Plural form'**.
- 2-27. **"Masculine"** words will also imply for **'Feminine'** words.

## Part - 2

### Composition (structure) of the organization and office

#### Article 3-0 Structure of the organization.

Brecon Nepalese Society – Constitution 2011 (Amended 2016)

- 3-1. The Organization shall be a self-governed, independent and socially focused organization.
- 3-2. The Organization shall have the right to possess movable and immovable properties and manage such properties.
- 3-3. The Organization shall be able to sue other organization for using its title and shall also be subject to be sued by other organizations.
- 3-4. The Organization shall have the right to appoint a legal advisor to resolve issues relating to the organization.

**Article 4-0 Office of the Organization.**

- 4-1. The office of the organization shall remain in an appropriate location in Brecon.

**Article 5-0 The appendices of the organization shall be as follows:**

- 5-1. Appendix (1) – Logo.
- 5-2. Appendix (2) – Stamp.
- 5-3. Appendix (3) – Flag.
- 5-4. Appendix (4) - Letter pad.
- 5-5. Appendix (5) - Membership application form.
- 5-6. Appendix (6) - Membership identification Card.
- 5-7. Appendix (7) – Script of Oath of office.

**Part - 3**

**Objectives, Policies and Programs of the Organization**

**Article 6-0 Within the boundaries of existing local social and common laws, the organization shall have the following objectives:**

- 6-1. To provide financial, moral and physical support to immediate family members in the unfortunate case of death. All members shall contribute a minimum of £20.00. However, financial assistance shall only be activated on the request of the bereaved family.
- 6-2. To provide voluntary financial assistance to members who becomes seriously ill or injured as a result of an accident and is beyond his or her financial state.

- 6-3. To raise awareness and take initiative to conserve and promote arts, cultures and traditions amongst the younger generation and in the local community in general.
- 6-4. To take initiative to ensure rights of Nepalese by maintaining sisterly relations with other non-government organizations in the UK.
- 6-5. To collate and maintain stream of Nepalese diaspora in and around Brecon.
- 6-6. To hold in high esteem, respect and honor the good achievements made by children of members of the community.
- 6-7. To play a role in attainment/ensuring the rights of members with the concerned authorities.
- 6-8. To maintain unity among Nepalese diaspora in the UK and develop close cooperation amongst them.
- 6-9. To provide financial and moral support to Nepal and her people in times of natural disasters and other tragic accidents as far as possible.
- 6-10. To promote and transfer skills, knowledge and technology learnt in the UK to appropriate places in Nepal whenever possible.

**Article 7-0      The policies and programs of organization will remain as follows:**

- 7-1. To take initiative to ensure rights of Nepali residents in Brecon and surrounding areas in uplifting their status.
- 7-2. To maintain friendly relations with sisterly organizations.
- 7-3. To organize seminars and meetings with officials of different governmental and non-governmental organizations of the town with a view to promote integration and interaction.
- 7-4. To organize programmes on regular basis to promote and preserve Nepalese culture including extra curriculum activities for further development.
- 7-5. To encourage, educate and make aware the local community that Nepali community is an integral part of the community.
- 7-6. To assist, organize or coordinate activities to local community and authorities in order to achieve the primary objective of the organization.
- 7-7. To arrange media of communication and information.

## Part - 4 Membership

### **Article 8-0      Qualification for Membership:**

- 8-1.            Must be a resident of Brecon and surrounding area and of Nepalese diaspora.
- 8-2.            Must be over the age of 18 years.
- 8-3.            Except in the case of Nepalese mentioned in article 8-1 and 8-2, other Nepalese can apply for membership to the executive committee of the organization. Membership can be awarded to such applicant for a probation period of a year with a simple majority of the board meeting which shall be done within 30 days of receiving such application.

### **Article 9-0      Types of Members**

- 9-1.            **General Member:** Persons qualified in accordance with Article 8, can apply for membership of the community by submitting a written application to the Executive Committee. Annual fee for the membership fee will be £12.00 per family.
- 9-2.            **Life Membership:** Persons qualified in accordance with article 8 or members according to article 9-1, can apply for life membership in writing to the executive committee with a one off payment of £300 (Three hundred pounds). If executive committee accepts the application, the applicant will be granted a life membership of the organization. Such members may be given an identity card of such membership by the organization.
- 9-3            **Founding Members:** Members who have obtained membership first are known as founding members of the organization.

### **Article 10-0     Functions, Duties and Rights of the Members**

- 10-1.           Act in accordance with policies and for promotion of the organization.
- 10-2.           Pay subscriptions determined by organization in time.
- 10-3.           Provide constructive advice and opinion, participate in discussions and exercise right of vote when necessary during assembly or convention of them organization.
- 10-4.           Act according to code of conduct formulated by the organization.

**Article 11-0 Deactivation and Activation of Membership (of members)**

- 11-1. The membership of the members will be terminated under following conditions:
- 11-2. When a registered member becomes absent continuously for more than 6 months from Brecon and surrounding area.
- 11-3. When a member of the organization resides outside of Brecon and if his/her membership has not been terminated, he/she will be eligible to receive benefits at par with other members so long as subscription is paid in full.
- 11-4. Membership can be reactivated at any time if and when he or she relocate to Brecon or surround area and fulfills the criteria outlined in clause 9-1 of this act.

**Article 12-0 Termination of membership**

- 12-1. In case of death of a member.
- 12-2. If membership is not renewed.
- 12-3. If proven to act against the act of the organization.
- 12-4. If a member fails to pay the annual fee by the end of June and ignores the verbal warning given in July by the committee members, such a member will be not entitled for any financial support from the society. And if he continues to ignore third warning, his membership will come to end.
- 12-5. If members relocate permanently away from Brecon and decides to terminate the membership voluntarily.

**Part – 5  
Financial Arrangement**

**Article 13-0 Treasury**

- 13-1. The organization will have treasury of its own. Main sources of incomes are:
- 13-2. Annual subscription and profits made from activities and programmes organized by the community.
- 13-3. In course of implementation of policies and programmes of the organization, if necessary, the executive committee may determine additional financial contribution from members.
- 13-4. Special fee: in order to preserve the society's intention and if society become under financial crisis, a special fee is allowed to collect by the society.

## **Article 14-0      Running of Treasury**

- 14-1.            The society shall have its own bank account and every aspect of financial transaction will be done through this account.
- 14-2.            The bank account will be maintained in the names of chairperson, secretary and treasurer of the organization and will be operated by signatures of at least two of these executives.
- 14-3.            All the financial transactions in the bank will be maintained safely and carefully for audit purposes.
- 14-4.            Any cash received from any sources shall be deposited to bank within a week of receipt.
- 14-5.            The membership fees will be collected from each family of the organization and will be deposited into the account of the organization.
- 14-6.            All paper works relating to finance of the organization will be kept by the treasurer of the organization.
- 14-7.            Only with the sanction of the executive committee, money can be spent, whatever the cause may be. In case of refusal of this decision, or larger amounts over the limit specified in Article 26, it must be voted through the general assembly.

## **Part - 6**

### **General (Constitutional) Assembly**

**Article 15-0      Constitutional Assembly:** The organization will have a constitutional assembly.

- 15-1.            The constitution Assembly will be composed as follows:
- 15-2.            Office bearers of executive committee and ex-officio members.
- 15-3.            Members of all departments.
- 15-4.            Advisors of the organization.
- 15-5.            Life members.
- 15-6.            Up to 19 other members can be appointed by consensus or majority decision of the executive committee.

**Article 16-0      Functions, duties and rights of constitutional Assembly.**

- 16-1.            To discuss and approve the annual report presented by executive committee.



- 16-2. To discuss and to approve rules and regulations presented by executive committee.
- 16-3. To approve organizational, financial, legal and other matters of the annual report.
- 16-4. In case of executive committee becoming inactive, the Constitutional Assembly shall be the apex (Supreme) body of the organization, and it shall form a new executive committee within six months by calling a special convention.
- 16-5. The assembly has the right to expel or suspend a committee member if at least one third members of this assembly register a written application and approved by two third of the its members against a member of the committee citing that the member has worked against the objectives and well-being of the organization.

**Article 17-0 Meeting of Constitutional Assembly**

- 17-1. The constitutional assembly meeting will be held as and when necessary.

**Article 18-0 Office term of the members**

- 18-1. The office term of the office bearers and members of the executive committee shall be generally for 2 years from the date of election.
- 18-2. Except in special circumstances the membership of life time member shall be valid for life unless the a member desires to opt out.
- 18-3. The office term of members in the Advisory board shall remain valid for the time he/she remains in the Advisory board.
- 18-4. The members appointed according to 15.6 shall remain members until the next convention except in special circumstances.

**Article 19-0 Termination of office of member**

- 19-1. In case of non-renewal of membership.
- 19-2. When a member submits a resignation and is accepted.
- 19-3. When an office bearer is no longer a member of executive committee.

- 19-4. When the member migrates permanently away from Brecon or surrounding area and remains outside of Brecon for more than 6 months without informing the organization.
- 19-5. In case of death and when he/she is unable to perform his duties due to physical and mental health problems.
- 19-6. In case of action taken in accordance with article 16-5.

## **Part-7**

### **Conventions and Special Conventions**

**Article 20-0** **Convention:** Convention shall be the supreme body of the organization and shall be called in every two years by the executive committee. Conventions shall happen in two parts.

- 20-1. Convention shall be organized by following process:
- 20-2. First part of the convention shall be an open session. The open session shall be conducted by the secretary under the chairmanship of chairperson of the executive committee. The open session shall be attended by chief guest, guests, executive committee, advisory committee, life time members, registered members, observers and other attendees.
- 20-3. The open session of the convention shall end when chairperson declares the election of election committee in accordance with article 24-14 and declares dissolution of the executive committee in accordance with article 24-15.
- 20-4. Second session of the convention (closed session)
- 20-5. The closed session shall be conducted under the chairmanship of the chairperson of closed session running committee and in the presence of recently dissolved executive committee, advisory committee, members of constitutional assembly, registered members and life time members. The duly dissolved executive committee shall be held accountable for this session.
- 20-6. The election committee will conduct formal process of the election of new committee in accordance with the rules outlined in this act.

**Article 21-0** **Functions, Duties and Rights of Convention.**

- 21-1. The convention will discuss organizational and financial reports and constitution amendment proposals and will pass them on the basis of simple majority.
- 21-2. Convention will discuss future policies and programmes of the organization and other issues presented for decision making and pass (approve them).
- 21-3. In according with article 21-14, the closed session shall be conducted in the presence of convention running committee.
- 21-4. Convention shall form an executive committee in accordance with article 23-2.
- 21-5. Convention shall constitute a constitutional assembly in accordance with article 15-1.
- 21-6. Election during convention shall be held on simple majority basis.
- 21-7. Election shall be held by an election committee formed according to article 29-1 in accordance with article 29(2).

**Article 22-0 Quorum for convention and special convention.**

- 22-1. A presence of 51% (fifty-one percent) of total members in the convention shall be considered the quorum required for the convention.
- 22-2. Members residing outside of Brecon Wales shall not be counted in quorum required.

**Part - 8  
Executive Committee**

**Article 23-0 Formation of executive committee**

- 23-1. There shall be an executive committee for the day to running of the community activities.
- 23-2. There shall be one chairperson, two deputy chairpersons, one secretary, one assistant secretary, one treasurer, one assistant treasurer and 12 executive members in the committee.
- 23-3. Executive committee shall be elected by convention on consensus basis as far as possible. Failing this, they shall be elected through election.
- 23-4. Election process shall be conducted in accordance with article 29(1) and 29(2) and shall be conducted by election committee as determined by the act of the organization.

**Article 24-0      Functions, Duties and Rights of Executive Committee**

- 24-1.            To implement the decisions of the convention and to formulate, implement and observe the programmes run by the organization.
- 24-2.            To conduct meetings of Constitutional Assembly.
- 24-3.            To contact and coordinate with governmental and non-governmental organizations.
- 24-4.            To safeguard and manage movable and immovable properties of the organization.
- 24-5.            To appoint employees according to necessity and determine their salaries and working conditions.
- 24-6.            To represent the organization in negotiations with governmental and non-governmental organizations or to appoint experts in relevant field for negotiations and to provide leadership to such experts during negotiations.
- 24-7.            To encourage members to play an active role and be responsible to the organization.
- 24-8.            To organize a convention.
- 24-9.            To invite the guests in the convention.
- 24-10.           To prepare organizational, financial, legal and other reports for presentation in the convention.
- 24-11.           To constitute (form) different committees and working groups and to determine their functions, duties and rights.
- 24-12.           To form a secretariat and determine its duties and rights for the smooth and efficient execution of routine functions and activities.
- 24-13.           To complete a convention within three months of end of the term of executive committee.
- 24-14.           To elect a chair person and maximum of two members to run the closed session of the convention.
- 24-15.           To form an election committee for the purpose of election during convention comprising of a chairperson and two members.
- 24-16.           To carry out activities for the betterment of the organization within the boundaries set by this act.

**Article 25-0      Meeting of executive committee and quorum of it.**

- 25-1.            The meeting of executive committee shall be held at least once in three months and whenever necessary at other times.

- 25-2. A special meeting of executive committee can be called if 1/3 (one third) of the committee members give a written application stating its necessity.
- 25-3. Whenever a proposal is discussed in the committee, a decision will be taken on consensus basis as far as possible. If that is not possible, a simple majority shall be considered the decision of the executive committee.
- 25-4. The meeting of the executive committee shall be held under chairmanship of the chairperson of the executive committee and in his/her absence deputy chairperson shall chair the meeting.
- 25-5. Presence of 51% (fifty-one percent) of the committee members shall be considered a quorum for the meeting of executive committee.
- 25-6. If any member of the executive committee is outside Brecon Wales UK, he/she shall not be counted for quorum.

**Article 26-0 Functions, Duties and Rights of the Office bearers and members of the executive committee.**

**26-1 Chairperson**

- 26-1-1. To chair the executive committee and general assembly meetings.
- 26-1-2. To chair the meetings of executive committee, constitutional assembly and open session of the convention.
- 26-1-3. To act as chief (executive) of the organization by being accountable towards constitutional assembly and the convention.
- 26-1-4. To direct and implement the policies, instructions and decisions approved by the convention and constitutional assembly.
- 26-1-5. To observe the programmes and projects run by the organizations and provide necessary instruction.
- 26-1-6. To direct the secretary to call meeting.
- 26-1-7. In case the chairperson has to be outside Brecon, Wales, he/she has to handover his/her prerogatives to the vice-chairperson in writing.
- 26-1-8. The chairperson has the right to call an emergency meeting of executive committee, whenever necessary, within two weeks.
- 26-1-9. In case of emergency expenditure needed for the fulfillment of objectives of the organization, the chairperson can spend up to £100 in consultation with the secretary and the treasurer.

26-1-10. To allocate areas of responsibilities amongst the office bearers and the committee members.

**Article 26-2-0 Vice-chairperson.**

26-2-1. To act in accordance with article 26-1 in the absence of the Chairperson.

26-2-2. To assist the chairperson in the fulfillment of his/her duty.

26-2-3. To assist in activities of various committee, coordinate and evaluate them.

26-2-4. To inform the Chairperson in writing, if he/she has to be away from Brecon for more than one month.

**Article 26-3-0 Secretary**

26-3-1. The Secretary shall work as secretary of executive committee, constitutional assembly and convention.

26-3-2. To run the meetings of executive committee, constitutional assembly and convention and write the produce minutes of these meetings.

26-3-3. Safe keeping of records of activities and documents of the organization.

26-3-4. To prepare reports and future policies on behalf of executive committee

26-3-5. As being the chief of organizational structure of the committee, he/she has to be accountable to constitutional assembly and the convention.

26-3-6. To inform the Chairperson in writing, if he/she has to be away from Brecon for more than one month.

26-3-7. In case of emergency expenditure needed for the fulfillment of objectives of the organization, the secretary can spend up to £100 in consultation with the chairperson and the treasurer.

26-3-8. To correspond with all bodies as directed by the chairperson.

**Article 26-4 Assistant Secretary**

26-4-1. To carry out duties outlined in Article 26-3 in the absence of the secretary.

26-4-2. To assist secretary in writing decisions of the meeting and in other activities.

26-4-3. Focal point for the publicity and information campaign.

- 26-4-4. To ensure all members are made aware of the decisions made in the meetings.
- 26-4-5. To inform the Chairperson in writing, if he/she has to be away from Brecon for more than one month.

**Article 26-5-0 Treasurer**

- 26-5-1. To run the financial aspects of the organization.
- 26-5-2. To maintain a bank account with inclusion of signatures of the chairperson and the secretary.
- 26-5-3. As the chief of financial and material (physical) matters of the organization, be accountable to constitutional assembly and the convention.
- 26-5-4. To present written record of financial transactions (income and expenditures) in the meeting of the executive committee and general meetings.
- 26-5-5. To prepare the financial and other reports as directed by the executive committee and to prepare balance sheet of predicted future incomes and expenditures.
- 26-5-6. To prepare for audit in each fiscal year as and when necessary.
- 26-5-7. Day to day maintenance of the treasury of the organization in in close coordination with the executive committee.
- 26-5-8. To inform the Chairperson in writing, if he/she has to be away from Brecon for more than one month.
- 26-5-9. In case of emergency expenditure needed for the fulfillment of objectives of the organization, the treasurer can spend up to £100 in consultation with the chairperson and the secretary.

**Article 26-6-0 Deputy Treasurer**

- 26-6-1. To carry out the duties outlined in Article 26-5 in the absence of treasurer.
- 26-6-2. To assist the treasurer during meetings in matters related to financial aspects of the organization.
- 26-6-3. To inform the Chairperson in writing, if he/she has to be away from Brecon for more than one month.

**Article 26-7-0 Functions, Duties and Rights of members of executive committee.**

- 26-7-1 Regularly present in meetings of executive committee, to play constructive role in activities of the organization and to fulfill the responsibilities given by the executive committee.
- 26-7-2 Consult with chairperson and the secretary prior to meetings regarding proposals of the meetings.
- 26-7-3 Offer advice in matters presented in the meeting and cast vote if required.
- 26-7-4 Actively engage in responsibilities given by the executive committee and work with full capability.
- 26-7-5 To inform the Chairperson in writing, if he/she has to be away from Brecon for more than two months.

**Article 27-0 Qualification of office bearers and members of the executive committee.**

- 27-1 Shall be the valid member of the organization.
- 27-2 Registered members must have completed observation period in accordance with article 8(4).
- 27-3 Shall be of or above the age of 18 years and 21 years for the post of chairperson and secretary.
- 27-4 Shall not be ineligible by existing laws of Brecon, Wales, UK. For example, persons with mental imbalance, convicted of criminal offences and drug addicts.
- 27-5 Shall not be persons of the selection committee in accordance with article 29(1).

**Article 28-0 Termination of term of office of office bearers and members of the executive committee.**

- 28-1 In case of death or mental illness.
- 28-2 In case of resignation and acceptance of such resignation.
- 28-3 In case of being outside of Brecon, Wales, UK continuously for more than 6 months without information.
- 28-4 In case of non-attendance in meetings of executive committee for three consecutive times without information and on the basis of this, if 2/3 (two third) majority of executive committee decide to suspend or dismiss (expel) such member.
- 28-5 In case of proven guilty and convicted according to existing laws of Brecon, Wales, UK and imprisoned on such accusations.
- 28-6 In accordance with article 32, if vote of no confidence gets approval.



## Part - 9

### Election Committee and Advisory Committee

#### Article 29-0 Administrative Arrangements for Elections

- 29-1 For the purpose of convention, the executive committee shall appoint Chairperson and maximum of two members to form an election committee.
- 29-2 Functions, duties and rights of election committee.
- 29-2-1 Election committee shall conduct elections on consensual basis as far as possible and on the basis of majority in case when an election becomes unavoidable.
- 29-2-2 Procedure for election shall be determined by election committee in accordance with the act of the organization.
- 29-2-3 The election committee shall be automatically dissolved as soon the process of election is over.

#### Article 30-0 Advisory committee

- 30-1 An advisory committee of number of members shall be constituted from among experts in different field and from among those who have faith in the organization to offer suggestions, ideas, and instruction to the executive committee.

## Part - 10

### Miscellaneous

- 31-0 **Vacant Posts and fulfillment:** The posts or office bearers and members will become vacant under following conditions:
- 31-1 In case members of executive committee or constitutional assembly offer resignation and if it is accepted (approval), in case of death, in case of dismissal by vote of no confidence, in case of being convicted by existing laws of Brecon, Wales, UK on moral grounds, in case of remaining outsidess of Brecon, Wales, UK continuously for over 6 months, the post shall be considered vacant.
- 31-2 The vacated posts of office bearers of executive committee posts will be filled in the order of merit. In the case of member's post, the executive committee can select to fill such posts. Such matters have to be approved by the constitutional assembly or the convention.

31-3 In case of a vacant post of a constitutional assembly member, it shall be fulfilled by the executive committee from the respective sector.

**Article 32-0 Vote of no confidence.**

32-1 Proposal of no confidence can be brought against office bearers of the executive committee and members of constitutional assembly citing the acts and deeds. If the accusation was proved to be right, the organization has the right to suspend or expel such office bearer or member. The proposal of no confidence can be brought under following conditions.

32-1-1 A written and signed petition by 2/3 (two third) of the total members.

32-1-2 A written and signed petition by 2/3 (two third) of total members of constitutional assembly.

32-1-3 A written and signed petition by 1/3 (one third) of total members of executive committee.

32-1-4 During discussion on complaint application in accordance with article 36(1), in following conditions vote of no confidence shall be assumed approved.

32-1-5 By single majority of convention.

32-1-6 By two third majority of constitutional assembly.

32-1-7 By 1/3 (one third) majority of executive committee.

32-1-8 The person against whom proposal of no confidence has been tabled shall be given every opportunity for clarification. However, if the proposal of no confidence is approved, the person will be automatically relieved from the post.

**Article 33-0 Auditing**

33-1 Should there be a need, the financial transactions will be audited each year by a recognized auditor.

**34-0 Making of rules and regulations.**

34-1 The executive committee shall have rights to formulate rules and regulations to fulfil the objectives of the organization and for the smooth functioning of the organization. But such rules and regulations shall be approved through the convention.

**Article 35-0      Right to interpretation**

35-1                      During the implementation of constitution, should there be any difficulty in interpretation, the constitutional assembly or the convention has the right to clarify the matter. If the meeting of constitutional assembly or the convention cannot be called immediately, the executive committee shall interpret the constitution with advice from legal expert in accordance with article 3-4 and it shall be approved by the earliest meeting of constitutional assembly or the convention.

**Article 36-0      Automatic deactivation.**

36-1                      This constitution (act) and articles shall be automatically deactivated if they contradict with the existing laws of Brecon, Wales, UK.

**Article 37-0      Data Protection.**

37-1                      The personal information and facts shall be kept confidential and under no circumstances, they are to be released without the prior consent of the person concerned. Such breach of rule will be liable for prosecution in accordance to data protection act.

**Article 38-0      Amendment of constitution.**

38-1                      In order to amend the constitution, a written application with signatures of 2/3 (two third) members present in constitutional assembly or convention will be required which will be considered during the assembly.

38-2                      The constitution shall be considered amended if 2/3 (two thirds) of the members present in constitutional assembly or convention pass the constitution amendment proposal after discussion.

**Article 39-0      Responsibility.**

39-1                      The office bearers and members of the executive committee shall be responsible personally to executive committee and collectively to the organization.

39-2 The members of constitutional assembly shall be responsible personally to constitutional assembly and collectively to the organization.

**Article 40-0 Handover of responsibilities.**

40-1 The executive committee, on completion of its tenure, shall handover all paper works, movable and immovable properties and other assets to new executive committee within a month from the date of termination of the office.

**Article 41-0 Dissolution of the organization.**

42-1 If the organization is no longer sustainable due to a decline in number of members or it serves no purpose by continuing, the organization can be dissolved. It will require a majority of 3/4 (three quarter) of total members of organization.

42-2 If the organization is dissolved according to article 42-1, the local authorities of Brecon and the Government of Nepal shall have the right to possess all movable and immovable properties of the organization.

**Constitution Review Team**

Maj(Retd) Khusiman Gurung MVO	- Coordinator
Maj(Retd) Guptaman Gurung MVO MBE	- Member
Mr Gumandhoj Limbu	- Member
Mr Minprasad Paija	- Member
Mr Krishna Jugjali	- Member

This revised constitution was enormously conceded on **23 July 2016**